Public Document Pack

AT
)
SR

Jx\@ «

COTSWOLD

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Tuesday, 24 October 2023

Tel: 01285 623553
e-mail - democratic@cotswold.gov.uk

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE (LICENSING ACT 2003 MATTERS)

A meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee (Licensing Act 2003 Matters) will be held at Council
Chamber - Trinity Road on Wednesday, | November 2023 at 2.00 pm.

N4
A/

v i

Rob Weaver
Chief Executive

To: Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee (Licensing Act 2003 Matters)
(Councillors Ray Brassington, Daryl Corps, Andrew Maclean)

Recording of Proceedings — The law allows the public proceedings of Council, Cabinet, and
Committee Meetings to be recorded, which includes filming as well as audio-recording.
Photography is also permitted.

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the
Committee Administrator know prior to the date of the meeting.

Cotswold District Council, Trinity Road, Cirencester, Gloucestershire, GL7 |PX
Tel: 01285 623000 www.cotswold.gov.uk

Page 1


http://www.cotswold.gov.uk/

(END)

AGENDA

Apologies
Substitutions

Declarations of Interest
To receive any declarations of interest from Members. To receive any declarations of
interest from Officers under the Code of Conduct for Officers.

Procedures for Licensing Hearings

Application to Vary a Premises Licence (Pages 7 - 38)

Summary

To determine an application to Vary a Premises Licence made by Jolly Nice Limited at
Jolly Nice Café, White Horse Filling Station.

Recommendation
That the Licensing Sub-Committee is asked, in light of the representations received, to
consider the application and determine whether to:-

e grant the application as requested.

e grant the application subject to such conditions that are necessary to promote
the licensing objectives.

e refuse the application in whole or in part where it is necessary in order to
promote the licensing objectives.

Page 2



Agenda Annex

LICENSING COMMITTEE (LICENSING ACT 2003 MATTERS)
PROCEDURE FOR DETERMINING APPLICATIONS

The four licensing objectives, as given by the Licensing Act 2003, are:

e the prevention of crime and disorder;
e public safety;

e the prevention of public nuisance

e the protection of children from harm.

Each application that comes before the Committee will be determined on its own merits, and the
licensing authority will take its decision based on:

e the merits of the application;
e the promotion of the four licensing objectives;

e the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy, a copy of which of which can be obtained
from the Licensing Section at Forest of Dean District Council

e the amended guidance issued by the Home Office in April 2018 under Section 182 of
the Licensing Act 2003.

l. Following election, the Chairman opens the Meeting, introducing the Members of the
Committee and Officers to the Applicant(s) and members of the public, explains the nature
of the decision to be taken, and the procedure to be followed.

2. The Licensing Officer outlines the application, any relevant representations and relevance
to the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and statutory guidance.

3. Members may ask any relevant questions of the Licensing Officer-.
4. The Licensing Officer introduces the Applicant(s) (if present) and the Chairman invites

him/her/them, or the person representing the Applicant, to present his/her application to
the Committee and to clarify any information arising from the Officer’s outline, if

necessary.
5. Members may ask relevant questions of the Applicant(s) regarding the application.
6. The Chairman invites those parties, including any interested parties and/or responsible

authorities, making representations to address the Committee in turn.
7. Members may ask any relevant questions of those parties making representations.

8. The Applicant(s) may ask any relevant questions of those parties making representations.

Page 3



If necessary, the Committee will consider requests to allow other parties invited by the
Applicant(s) to address the Committee.

Members may ask any relevant questions of any person invited by the Applicant(s) who
addresses the Committee.

Any parties who have made representations may ask any relevant questions of any person
invited by the Applicants who addresses the Committee.

The Chairman invites the Applicant(s) and any parties making representations, to briefly
summarise their points if they wish.

The Chairman ascertains that all parties are satisfied they have said all they wish to say.

The Committee debates the application and makes its decision; it may retire to do so, if
appropriate.

Where a decision is made at the Meeting, the Chairman notifies the Applicant(s):-

of the decision;
e the reasons for the decision;

e any conditions placed on the licence (if granted), and the licensing objectives they relate
to;

e the rights of appeal, and that the decision will be confirmed in writing as soon as
practicable following the Meeting, and within the statutory timescales.

Page 4



NOTES

All references to the Committee relate to any three Member Committees of the Licensing
Committee. However, a Committee could decide not to exercise its delegated authority
and refer an application to the Licensing Committee for determination, or to the Council
(as the Licensing Authority). In such cases, references to ‘the Committee’ shall relate to
the Committee or the Council, as appropriate.

All references to the Licensing Officer refer to the Public Protection Manager or other
appropriate Licensing Officers.

All references to the Applicant(s) refer to the Applicant(s), the licensee or his/her
representative.

Hearings will take the form of a discussion led by the Committee throughout which
Members, the Applicant(s) and, if appropriate, Officers and other parties, may ask
questions.

Parties who have made representations will be invited to address the Committee in the
following order, where applicable:-

o Gloucestershire Constabulary;

o Gloucestershire Fire & Rescue Service;

o the Health & Safety Executive;

o Trading Standards Officer;

o Child Protection Team

o Officers of the Council in capacity as Responsible Authorities (health

and safety, planning and pollution);
. Health Body;

o Other Persons;

o Ward Member(s).

Each party is allowed a maximum period of |15 minutes to make all of their relevant
statements unless the Chairman expressly approves otherwise, but the Committee
respectfully requests that all parties keep points pertinent and the discussion moving, in the
interests of cost and efficiency.

In order to avoid repetition, parties are requested to appoint a spokesperson to address
the Committee where a number of the same, or similar representations, are being made.

Decisions will generally be taken regardless of whether the Applicant(s) is present. All
notices and representations received from absent parties will be considered.

Where the decision is not made at the Meeting, it will be made within five working days of
the date of that Meeting.

Information which has not been produced prior to a Meeting will not be considered unless
with the agreement of the Committee and all relevant parties present.

Page 5



k. Any changes in the membership of the Committee will be announced by the Chairman at
the start of the Meeting.

l. The Council is committed to taking decisions in an honest, accountable and transparent
fashion but, on occasion, may find it necessary to exclude members of the public and Press
in accordance with the legal framework given in Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972 and/or local policy. On those occasions, decisions based on the above framework
will be given. Similarly, the Council generally will allow all parties to ask questions of
another party present, but this decision will be taken on a case-by-case basis. Cross
examination of parties is prohibited except in exceptional circumstances, when a reason
will be given

m. The Council has the right to exclude parties disrupting this Meeting, at its discretion.

HOUSEKEEPING MATTERS

Mobile phones must be switched off or set to silent
No smoking throughout the building or anywhere on the site

In the event of the fire alarm sounding, Officers will direct you to the meeting point

Page 6




Agenda Item 4

COTSWOLD

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Council name

COTSWOLD DISTRICT COUNCIL

Name and date of
Committee

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE — |* November 2023

Subject

Application to Vary a Premises Licence

Woards affected

Ermin

Accountable member

Planning and Licensing Committee

Accountable officer

Kevin Dunford, Licensing Officer

Email: ers@cotswold.gov.uk

Report author

Kevin Dunford, Licensing Officer

Email: ers@cotswold.gov.uk

Summary/Purpose To determine an application to Vary a Premises Licence made by Jolly
Nice Limited at Jolly Nice Café, White Horse Filling Station.
Annexes Annex A — Copy of the Application.

Annex B — Plan of the site and location.

Annex C — Copy of representations.

Recommendation(s)

That the Licensing Sub-Committee is asked, in light of the representations
received, to consider the application and determine whether to:-

e grant the application as requested.

e grant the application subject to such conditions that are necessary
to promote the licensing objectives.

e refuse the application in whole or in part where it is necessary in
order to promote the licensing objectives.

Corporate priorities

e Deliver the highest standard of service

Key Decision

NO

Exempt

NO

Consultees/
Consultation

A 28 day consultation has been undertaken with all Responsible
Authorities, Ward Member, Parish Council and advertised in accordance
with the Licensing Act 2003.

Page 7



3.2

COTSWOLD

DISTRICT COUNCIL

BACKGROUND

The Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”) allows Applicants to apply for new Premises Licences,
Premises Licence variations, Club Premises Certificates and Personal Licences. This
Application is for a Premises Licence Variation.

The Application was received on 7" September 2023. The Licensing Authority is satisfied that
the Application was duly made, the correct notification process was followed, and the
Application was appropriately advertised. It is noted that the applicant stated the 7th October
2023 as the close of consultation date on the site notice and newspaper advert meaning the
consultation ran for 2 additional days.

The Application seeks a Premises Licence Variation to the following licensable activities and
times:

e Supply by Retail of Alcohol Every day 08:00 — 22:00
On and Off premises

The licensable activities and times are currently:

e Supply by Retail of Alcohol Monday to Saturday 08:00 — 20:00
On and Off premises

A copy of the Application is attached at Annex A.

SITE DESCRIPTION

A copy of the site plan and location are attached at Annex B.

REPRESENTATIONS
Responsible Authorities under the Licensing Act 2003

No representations have been received from Responsible Authorities under the Licensing Act
2003

Parish Council and Residents

The Parish Council have made a representation which has been attached in Annex C. The
Parish Council also provide documents in support of the representation, but they have not
been include as they related to Planning applications, decisions and the Landscape officer
report which cannot be taken into consideration under the Licensing Act 2003.

Page 8



COTSWOLD

DISTRICT COUNCIL

There have been | | resident representations received in relation to this application.

Copies of these representations are attached in Annex C.

3.3 The concerns raised in the objections are as follows:
e Traffic, including road safety.
e Parking
¢ Planning permissions.
¢ Noise emanating from functions.
e Littering
e Toilet Facilities

e Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and disturbance to local wildlife.

The Licensing Authority is unable to accept these concerns due to the following reasons.

Traffic, Parking, Toilet Facilities and Area of Natural Beauty

These concerns cannot be taken into consideration under the Licensing Act 2003 and would
be dealt with under Planning Law. Planning and Licensing are two separate jurisdictions, and
it is up to the business operator to ensure that they adhere to both and have necessary
requirements in place.

Noise

As there are no music activities on this application, we are unable to take these concerns
into consideration. If residents experience noise nuisance or nuisance from the
live/recorded music provided at the site then these should be logged and reported to the
Council’s Operations team so that they can investigate this further. Residents can apply for
a review of the Premises Licence if a regular nuisance occurs.

The Council’s Pollution specialist did not raise any concerns with this application.

4. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

Page 9



4.1

42

7.1
7.2

COTSWOLD

DISTRICT COUNCIL

The Secretary of State’s Guidance (referred to as ‘Section 182 Guidance) requires Licensing
Authorities, following receipt of relevant representations, to make judgements about what
constitutes public nuisance and what is necessary, in terms of conditions attached to a specific
Premises Licence, to prevent it.

Where the Act provides for mandatory conditions to be included in a Premises Licence, it is
the duty of the Licensing Authority issuing the Licence to include those conditions in the
Licence.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications arising directly from the consideration of this application.
However, any appeal to the Magistrates’ Court against the refusal of the Application or against
the imposition of Conditions could result in the Council having to bear the legal costs of
defending its decision.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There is a right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the Council’s decision
should the Council refuse the Application or against the conditions imposed on the Licence.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Cotswold District Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy — 2021
Home Office S.182 Statutory Guidance published April 2018.

Page 10



COTSWOLD

DISTRICT COUNCIL [eJSTNIV]S

Cotswold
Application to vary a premises licence
Licensing Act 2003

For help contact
ers.licensingandapplications@publicagroup.uk
Telephone: 01285 623000

* required information

Section 1 of 18

You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.

System reference

Your reference

Not Currently In Use

Jolly Nice Hive Bar Major Variation

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant?

C  Yes

Applicant Details

* First name
* Family name

* E-mail

® No

Main telephone number

Other telephone number

IRebecca ‘

IWiIson ‘

[] Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Are you:

(¢ Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader

("  Applying as an individual

Applicant Business

Is your business registered in

the UK with Companies

House?

Registration number
Business name

VAT number

Legal status

(® Yes C No

09779766

Jolly Nice LTD

GB

183685175

Private Limited Company

This is the unique reference for this
application generated by the system.

You can put what you want here to help you
track applications if you make lots of them. It
is passed to the authority.

Put "no" if you are applying on your own
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or
work for.

Include country code.

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.
Applying as an individual means you are
applying so you can be employed, or for
some other personal reason, such as
following a hobby.

Note: completing the Applicant Business
section is optional in this form.

If your business is registered, use its
registered name.

Put "none" if you are not registered for VAT.

Page 1T

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009



Continued from previous page...

Your position in the business [Owner

Home country |United Kingdom

The country where the headquarters of your
business is located.

Registered Address

Address registered with Companies House.

Building number or name |Burton Sweet

Street |Cornerstone House, Midland Way
District IThornbury
City or town |Bristo|

County or administrative area |Bristo|

Postcode |BSBSZBS

Country |United Kingdom

Section 2 of 18

APPLICATION DETAILS

This application cannot be used to vary the licence so as to extend the period for which the licence has effect or to
vary substantially the premises to which it relates. If you wish to make that type of change to the premises licence,
you should make a new premises licence application under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.

I/we, as named in section 1, being the premises licence holder, apply to vary a premises licence under section 34 of the

Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in section 2 below.

* Premises Licence Number Do not Know

Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map reference or description of the premises?

(¢ Address ("  OS map reference ( Description

Postal Address Of Premises

Building number or name IJoIIy Nice Farm Shop

Street IFrampton Mansell
District IFrampton Mansell
City or town |Stroud

County or administrative area |Gloucestershire

Postcode IGL68HZ

Country IUnited Kingdom

Premises Contact Details

Telephone number 01285 760868

Page 12

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

Non-domestic rateable

value of premises (£) |10,250

Section 3 of 18

VARIATION

Do you want the proposed
variation to have effect as ® Yes C No
soon as possible?

Do you want the proposed variation to have effect in relation to the
introduction of the late night levy?

C Yes (® No

If your proposed variation
would mean that 5,000 or

more people are expected to [:
attend the premises at any
one time, state the number

expected to attend

Describe Briefly The Nature Of The Proposed Variation

proximity to the premises.

You do not have to pay a fee if the only
purpose of the variation for which you are
applying is to avoid becoming liable to the
late night levy.

Describe the premises. For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other information which
could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to
provide a place for consumption of these off-supplies, you must include a description of where the place will be and its

The farmshop consists of a butchery, a floristry department, fruit and veg, a self-service fish monger and the shop itself
which sells local wines, beers and locally made chocolates. We also have the drive through, a cafe, and a new bar.

The bar is alfresco and has a large amount of bench seating for customers, as well as a yurt for when the weather is bad.
The license is to allow the Hive Bar to be open until 10pm instead of 8pm. The rest of the site will continue to close at 8pm.

Section 4 of 18

PROVISION OF PLAYS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide plays be subject to change if this application to
vary is successful?

C Yes (® No

Section 5 of 18

PROVISION OF FILMS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide films be subject to change if this application to
vary is successful?

C Yes (® No

Section 6 of 18

PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS Page 13

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page... See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide indoor sporting events be subject to change if
this application to vary is successful?

C Yes (® No

Section 7 of 18

PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide boxing or wrestling entertainments be subject
to change if this application to vary is successful?

C Yes (¢ No

Section 8 of 18

PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide live music be subject to change if this
application to vary is successful?

C Yes (® No

Section 9 of 18

PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide recorded music be subject to change if this
application to vary is successful?

C Yes (® No

Section 10 of 18

PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide performances of dance be subject to change if
this application to vary is successful?

C Yes (® No

Section 11 of 18

PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF
DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide anything similar to live music, recorded music or
performances of dance be subject to change if this application to vary is
successful?

C Yes (® No

Section 12 of 18

PROVISION OF LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT

Page 14

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

Will the schedule to provide late night refreshment be subject to change if
this application to vary is successful?

C Yes (® No

Section 13 of 18

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Will the schedule to supply alcohol be subject to change if this application to
vary is successful?

(® Yes C No
Standard Days And Timings
MONDAY
TUESDAY
Start |: End ‘:'
WEDNESDAY
Start End
THURSDAY
Start l:‘ End l:l
FRIDAY
Start End
SATURDAY
Start [:I End D
SUNDAY
Start End

Provide timings in 24 hour clock

(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
to be used for the activity.

Page 15

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

Will the sale of alcohol be for consumption?

(' Onthe premises (" Off the premises (¢ Both If the sale of alcohol is for consumption on
the premises select on, if the sale of alcohol

is for consumption away from the premises
select off. If the sale of alcohol is for
consumption on the premises and away
from the premises select both.

State any seasonal variations.

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of alcohol at different times from those listed above,
list below.

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Section 14 0of 18

ADULT ENTERTAINMENT

Highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, or other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children.

Provide information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may
give rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for
example (but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups etc gambling machines etc.

n/a

Section 150f 18

HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC
Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY gt
Provide timings in 24 hour clock
Start |08:00 End (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
Start End I:‘ to be used for the activity.
TUESDAY

Start [08:00 End
Pafpiie |

Start

8 LE

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009



Continued from previous page...

WEDNESDAY

Start End
THURSDAY

Start |:] End I:I
FRIDAY

Start End
SATURDAY

Start [: End ‘:’
SUNDAY

State any seasonal variations.

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the members and guests at different times from
those listed above, list below.

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Identify those conditions currently imposed on the licence which you believe could be removed as a consequence of the
proposed variation you are seeking.

We are currently only able to sell alcohol until 8pm

I have enclosed the premises licence Page 17

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMISO 2009




Continued from previous page...

[[] I'have enclosed the relevant part of the premises licence

Reasons why | have failed to enclose the premises licence or relevant part of premises licence.

Section 16 of 18

LICENSING OBJECTIVES

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General - all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e)
List here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.

CCTV Cameras covering the whole of the site that are constantly monitored.

All bar staff are trained in the Challenge 25 policy to check ID's and prevent sales of alcohol to underage customers
First aid equipment on site

Waste Collected regularly and litter picks carried out daily

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

CCTV Cameras covering the whole of the site, a designated person on shift to deal with 'difficult’ customers, we have
lockable gates and so the premises will be secured by 10pm at the latest every day. All bar staff have received alcohol
safety training to prevent selling to under 18's and promote the checking of ID's. A notice will be displayed at the entrance
to the premises

advising that C.C.T.V. is in operation. All bottles and glasses are to be removed from public areas as soon as the contents
have been drunk or are empty.

¢) Public safety

Adequate and appropriate First Aid equipment and materials are available on the premises.

In the absence of adequate daylight suitable and sufficient artificial lighting is provided and maintained in any area
accessible to the public. Regular inspections from our electrical contractors. The premises have current and suitable Public
Liability Insurance in the sum of £10 million. The premises have current certificates of inspection for all portable fire
fighting equipment. Free drinking water will be available at all times when the premises is open to the public

d) The prevention of public nuisance

Prominent, clear and legible notices are displayed at all exits

requesting patrons to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and the area quietly

Disposal of empty bottles into waste receptacles outside the

premises will not be permitted to take place between the hours of 23:00 hrs and 07:00 hrs to minimise disturbance to
nearby occupiers. All external lighting, including floodlighting, is directed away

from adjacent occupiers.

The premises has a waste collection contract with Smith's who remove waste.

Staff undertake a litter pick around the premises daily.

e) The protection of children from harm

The premises operates under the Challenge 25 policy

Section 17 of 18 Page 18

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience
does not exceed 500.

Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the
screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides
by age classification ratings.

Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided
that the audience does not exceed 1000.

Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman
wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not
exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports — defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or
wrestling with one or more martial arts — are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an
indoor sporting event.

Live music: no licence permission is required for:
a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell
alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not
licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises
of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,
and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local
authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol
for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a
local authority, or (i) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b)
the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority
concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

Page 19

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

° Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the
audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance which amounts to adult entertainment remains
licensable.

° Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, with no limit on
audience size for:

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the entertainment is provided
by or on behalf of the local authority;

o any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider;

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the entertainment is provided by or
on behalf of the school proprietor; and

o any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) taking place at a travelling
circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience, and
(b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 consecutive days.

Section 18 of 18

PAYMENT DETAILS

This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complete the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card.

Variation Fees are determined by the non&nbsp;domestic rateable&nbsp;value of the premises.

To find out a premises non domestic rateable value go to the Valuation Office Agency site at http://www.voa.gov.uk/
business_rates/index.htm

Band A - No RV to £4300 £100.00

Band B - £4301 to £33000 £190.00

Band C- £33001 to £87000 £315.00

Band D - £87001 to £125000 £450.00*

Band E - £125001 and over £635.00*

*If the premises rateable value is in Bands D or E and the premises is primarily used for the consumption of alcohol on the
premises then you are required to pay a higher fee

Band D - £87001 to £125000 £900.00

Band E - £125001 and over £1,905.00

If you own a large premise you are subject to additional fees based upon the number in attendance at any one time.
Capacity 5000-9999 £1,000.00

Capacity 10000 -14999 £2,000.00

Capacity 15000-19999 £4,000.00

Capacity 20000-29999 £8,000.00

Capacity 30000-39999 £16,000.00

Capacity 40000-49999 £24,000.00

Capacity 50000-59999 £32,000.00

Capacity 60000-69999 £40,000.00

Capacity 70000-79999 £48,000.00

Capacity 80000-89999 £56,000.00

Capacity 80000-89999 £56,000.00

Capacity 90000 and over £64,000.00

* Fee amount (£) 190.00

ATTACHMENTS

AUTHORITY POSTAL ADDRESS

Page 20

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

Address

Building number or name

Street

|
|
District l
City or town [

County or administrative area l

Postcode ‘

Country lUnited Kingdom ‘

DECLARATION

I/WE UNDERSTAND THAT IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE
* STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON
SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

ion

e question "Are you an agent acting on

Add another signatory

Once you're finished you need to do the following:

1. Save this form to your computer by clicking file/save as...

2.Go back to https://www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-licence/premises-licence/cotswold/change-1 to upload this file and continue
with your application.

Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentation to hand.

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY
CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

Page 21

en’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




This page is intentionally left blank



i |

e

T




Chalford Hill

The'Crown Inn [

= . Frampton
Mansell

Oakridge

Jolly Nice'Farmshep;
2419 "=Eafe:&Drive Through

IS The-Downs Ba‘fn Lodge

Sappenoh

ErankliniEarms




Representations

C/23/01019/PRMV - Jolly Nice Limited Variation

P Robb

| was concerned to read in the Stroud Times that the Jolly Nice Farm shop has applied for an
extension to the opening hours of their Hive bar, and wish to object to the application for
this licence on the basis of the negative impact it will have on the local wildlife and our own
animals.

My family own the agricultural land and building to the south of the Jolly Nice property, and
have been concerned for some time at the impact the development of the site is having on
the wildlife and the peaceful environment we have enjoyed in the past. Whilst we respect
the business needs of the enterprise, there has been no consideration of the valuable rural
location, or attempts to minimise the negative impact on nearby animals and neighbours.

The Hive building itself has been placed immediately adjacent to our hedge line, which is
having a detrimental effect on the number and movement of birds (and bats) in that area.
The constant noise from staff and customers has shattered the peaceful beauty and is
spoiling our enjoyment of our own space. The pervasive smell of stale cooking oil and foul
toilet odour on a daily basis is disgusting.

The additional festoon lighting (which on a quick scan of the recent planning policies, does
not appear to have planning permission) that now extends around the bar and yurt as well
as across the whole site goes against all the local objectives of retaining dark skies and
natural spaces. The impact of allowing this licence would mean these lights would be shining
until 10pm, 7 days a week.

When planning was sought for the Hive, it was stated that it would be a meeting/stop off
place for cyclists, not an entertainment venue. The addition of the outdoor seating and
enormous canopy directly adjacent to our barn, now consumes almost the entire area that
we were led to believe (by the planning application) would be dedicated to a wildlife
meadow, and is a cause of great concern.

The noise levels from the Hive on a daily basis are a big issue for us, and there have been no
attempts to shield our property from this noise. The current 8pm opening hours are
disruptive enough, but the noise of the live music events that extend to 10pm is
unacceptable. The music ‘stage’ is only a few metres from the southern boundary, and the
walls of our barn actually vibrate during these events. We have two horses stabled within
the barn, and this level of noise causes them significant stress and is compromising their
health.

The four consecutive nights of events over the recent bank holiday weekend were incredibly
difficult. The thought of this licence being allowed, with disruption possible until 10pm, 7
days a week is intolerable.

Page 25



I would respectfully ask that the application for this licence for opening until 10pm, 7 days a
week, is declined, to preserve the special nature of this rural haven.

Page 26



Attached two photographs to show the close proximity of the Hive to the boundary




T Warren

Good morning,

My wife’s and | (Rebecca Warren) would like to formally object to Jolly Nice receiving an
alcohol license. We live next door within 50 years of the farm shop. They constantly hold
events and develop their site using retrospective planning. We are not always opposed to
this however as neighbours they are dreadful. They never consult or let the houses
surrounding the site know. Or apologies when they have held live misc events without
warning.

The junction that the farmshop is on is a very dangerous one with dozens of serious
accidents every year. | feel that the addition to add a late alcohol license to this will only
cause more as the site is not accessible by foot.

K & A Allen

As residents of the village of Frampton Mansell we strongly object to the above application
to extend licensing hours.

This is a farm shop and cafe in an area of outstanding natural beauty, with dark skies. It is
not appropriate for local residents nor local wildlife (including the welfare of the animals
currently being housed as an "attraction" right next to "the Hive") to be subjected to the
persistent light and noise pollution that would ensue from an outdoor venue operating
"pub" hours, 7 days a week. It is not what the residents of a rural village either need or
want.

Moreover, there are 5 public houses within the local area, all of whom are well established
businesses with proper facilities, which serve and support the local community and conduct
their business chiefly inside. When there is a thriving village pub less than a mile away, there
is no need for a farm shop and cafe to serve customers alcohol on the premises until late
into the evening. The impact on the custom of the local pubs in the area would be
significant and detrimental, and yet they serve as far better a hub for the local community
than Jolly Nice, who make minimal effort to engage with the residents of the surrounding
village.

Page 28



D Chitty

As a Frampton Mansell resident, | welcome the Jolly Nice Farm Shop and believe that the
drive-through is a useful resource. The extra traffic is a price we have to accept. We should
support rural businesses, which create jobs and provide a service.

However, since opening of the bar, the noise levels, extra traffic and light pollution are
becoming problematical. And any extension to hours will just make this worse, have further
negative impact on the peace of our rural community and our dark skies.

Furthermore, we have a number of pubs in the area which are not having an easy time. It
would be strange to encourage loud, very bright, late night competition to these businesses
at the heart of our communities.

| fervently hope the application for extended hours will be rejected.

Mrs S Grant

This site has turned from a farm shop to an evening entertainment facility which has not got
planning permission. | object die to adverse impacts on local residents amenity, safety of
horses, noise, nuisance, not suitable for quiet rural area in AONB and adverse impact on
local village pubs. The LPA should investigate lawful use of the site for bar and evening
entertainment surely not in accordance with approval for farm shop and cafe.

C & H Benham

| am writing on behalf of myself and my partner to object to the extension of the licensing
hours at The Jolly Nice.

we live at | ' property is

approximately 10m from the Jolly Nice.

The JN has introduced a “pub” facility over the last few months utilising temporary licences.
They host live music events Thursday to Sunday on a regular basis (at least twice a week and
for bank holiday weekends far more). The noise levels from these outdoor events is
extremely disturbing. The sound of the base in particular represents a thumping which is
clearly audible at our property to the extent that we can no longer sit in our garden in the
evening due to the base which you can actually feel in your chest - this continues for hours
and is both disturbing and distressing preventing us from enjoying our own home on a
number of evenings per week.

One should distinguish the events held by the Jolly Nice from the White Horse Inn which
previously occupied the site. The White Horse was a normal pub and any events were
infrequent and held indoors which deadened the sound. In addition the White Horse
provided screening in the form of mature hedges and trees which have been removed by
the JN. The noise and lighting pollution from the White Horse was negligible. However that

Page 29



from the Jolly Nice impacts its neighbours significantly and is not in keeping with the small
village location.

If you live near one of our music festival venues you only have to live with the impact for a
couple of weeks per year. If you live near a noisy nightclub you will have chosen to live in a
town with the associated noise expectation. The JN is producing light pollution on a dark
skies area as well and a major and regular noise disturbance in what was a quiet rural
location.

| would also note that the proximity to the A419 (a normal 2 lane road here - not the dual
carriage way to the South of Cirencester) in no way should influence the planners’ views on
noise disturbance. From 7pm onwards the traffic on the road decreases significantly and
the odd car passing by has no impact on the enjoyment of the house and garden in contrast
to a continual thumping sound from the music and festoon lighting which makes it
impossible to sit outside for quiet enjoyment of the countryside in which we live.

We urge the committee not to allow the extension of the licensing hours which is not
necessary for the functioning of a hot food takeaway and farmshop (the purpose of the site
according to the planning permissions granted to it) and is preventing the neighbouring
residents from enjoyment of their own properties due to the noise and light disturbance.

2" Email

Please also note that the application states that the licence is for an indoor venue. As is clear
from the website the venue is made up of a small hut called “the Hive” which houses the
bar but does not have any space for customers or performers who are seated outside.
Therefore this is actually an outdoor venue and should be considered as such.

S & P Jones
We wish to comment on the above application for Jolly Nice at Frampton Mansell.

To grant an alcohol licence for every evening of the week until 10 pm will completely alter
the nature of the business - a farm shop.

Furthermore, it will be damaging to passing trade and tourist business for the Crown Inn in
the village, less than a mile away, at a time when village pubs are all working hard to keep

going.

We understand from neighbours nearer to the venue that there are already noise issues
from The Hive which houses the bar: it is described as an indoor venue but a visit would
reveal that this cannot be the case.

Page 30



H Froggatt

As a local resident | am writing to object to this 2200hrs (10.00pm) drinks licence at Jolly
Nice, GL6 8JZ for the following reasons:

1. Road Safety - There is the real potential for additional traffic noise affecting the residents
of The Downs and Downs Mill.

2. The major exit from Jolly Nice leads by a short side road onto the A419 (a fast road) via a
junction that has traffic accidents most weeks clearly demonstrated by the amount of
vehicle debris in the verges (Highways will confirm).

3. Anything that increases the level of traffic late at night via this junction increases the
danger to both residents and passers-by.

4. No mention is made of any measures to discourage drink driving by JN customers.

5. No mention is made of any "new" traffic calming measures to increase awareness of the A
419 junction or indeed of people turning onto the Jolly Nice site from the A419 after
2000hrs (8.00pm) when in will be dark for part of the year.

P Tuck
| strongly object to this permission being granted on the following grounds:-

* Light - The Jolly Nice Site has had planning permission refused for the polluting and obtrusive
lighting that is strung across the site - see planning application 22/03850FUL. Breaches of planning
regarding this lighting which is still in place and has been added to since, have been reported to CDC.
The site remains bathed in artificial glare 15 hours a day. Extending licensing hours will create more
light spillage beyond the additional business hours of 10pm as patrons will inevitably take time to
leave after closing time. Our District Council should be protecting this valuable countryside, the Dark
Skies it enjoys, and the natural habitat for wildlife which is so important to the character of the
surrounding area.

*Noise - the regular live music events and DJ sessions have caused escalating disruption to local
residents. This has become a statutory nuisance as locals are deprived of their rights to enjoy the
tranquility of their own homes and gardens. The adjoining open air canopy to the Hive which hosts
these events is constructed of thin tent material and offers little protection from the incessant sub
bass repetitiveness which carries long distance! Residents _

_ and the village have concerns about the ongoing development of the site in
ways that are a long way from the original concept of a farm shop and cafe. The Hive and yurt were

originally seating for cyclists and yet now it is an 'entertainment venue'.. The Hive is set in a rural
tranquil setting in an AONB and this should be respected and cherished.

*Hygiene - the structure known as the Hive is situated along the southern boundary of the site. This
structure, toilets, car park, canopy and yurt have been erected only metres away from a neighbours
property comprising of an agricultural building and pasture land with animals.

The Jolly Nice development site plans submitted to the Cotswold District Council showed a
Wildflower Meadow along this southern boundary where the Hive Coffee Hut, Bar extension and

Page 31



toilets now stand. These structures have an adverse impact on their neighbours enjoyment of their
property, land and livestock. The Hive already creates car parking vehicle fumes, car alarms, toilet
odour stench, excess litter, vermin and unacceptable loud live music in this outdoor venue
detrimental to wildlife, bats, nocturnal animals and residents.

No attempt has been made by the owner to mitigate these issues so granting additional licensing
hours to 10pm, 7 days a week, will only exacerbate the position.

J De Freitas
| hope this email finds you well.
| have just been made aware of a licensing application being made by Jolly Nice.

| am directly affected by the music and light pollution (Previous light pollution complaint - See below
and attached).

The application is completely inappropriate and the music overwhelming impacts on the
environment and an AONB.

Jolly Nice have incrementally abused the planning system and gradually encroached further into the
land they own, which was formally a paddock.

Once the autumn is over we will be subjected to the music and continued light pollution, which you
and your colleagues in Planning have not addressed.

The music is not contained within a building and there will be no mitigating measures put in place.

They own the former Whitehorse Public House and the provision of music would have been
appropriate within a stone and brick building, not a yurt in an open field.

| strongly object to this application, please deal with the light and noise pollution. | make no
apologies for the tone of this email, but the community has had enough of the behaviour of Jolly
Nice. Please do not tell me that | am out of time regarding this matter, as you have previously sat on
and not acknowledged previous complaints made by me.

Content of email attachement:
Dear ERS and Planning,
| hope this email finds you all safe and well.

| am writing to you to complain about hours of darkness artificial light pollution from
commercial premises and land owned by Jolly Nice Farm Shop and Kitchen, Frampton
Mansell, Gloucestershire GL6 8HZ. | make this complaint on the basis that obtrusive light
and artificial light is now defined as a statutory nuisance in the Clean Neighbourhoods and
Environment Act 2005.

| want to make it clear from the outset that | have no personal axe to grind with the
business, which | regularly use.

Page 32



| moved to my present hore |

just over 2 years ago. We are located 400 metres to the west of Jolly Nice (JN) and apart
from large trees abutting the Rodmarton Road we have a clear and unobstructed view of
the west and south aspect of the Jolly Nice footprint.

In the time that | have been here | have witnessed the relentless expansion of the site
footprint into the paddock at the rear, which now comprises of a drive thru and a further
area demarcated for development, expansion and relocation of the current drive thru’
business (Currently subject to planning permission decision).

My specific complaint is in relation to all the obtrusive external lighting to the rear of the
premises (South aspect), which comprises of festoon lighting attached to raised (Above
head height) wooden posts. During the day, these lighting features appear benign, but
during the hours of darkness they are too bright, excessive and unnecessarily spill into the

adjacent countryside. | and my neighbours at _,

who are much closer, consider the light pollution excessive and a nuisance.

The business hours are advertised as 8am to 7pm, but the lights remain on well beyond 8pm
and sometimes later. At the beginning of the month the lights remained on throughout the
night for 5 consecutive nights. Although | am 400 metres from JN, the light emitted is
sufficient to be noticeable in my main bedroom, which faces JN.

We reside in an AONB and the CPRE estimates that 49% of the area covered by the AONB is
classified as having Dark Skies. JN and our house falls within the catchment area designated
as the next step down from Dark Skies, but we abut areas classified as such. This is not now
the case, due to the excessive and unnecessary light pollution emitted from JN. CDC
planning policies recognise the need to maintain dark skies. We have no street lighting and
there is an expectation in this rural location of a dark sky at night.

The lights cannot be classified as Christmas decorations, as they are on throughout the
winter months and spring.

| have read through all the planning applications and site plans submitted by JN and there is
no mention of lighting schemes or any consideration given to mitigating artificial light
pollution from obtrusive external lights. In a current retrospective planning application an
objector, who resides 1.8 km away across the other side of the valley (Oakridge Lynch),
describes the external lighting at JN as excessive. | concur.

Having read the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Lighting Professionals (ILP),
planning policies and other relevant regulations it is clear that JN has not given any thought
to installing suitable lighting or implemented measures to mitigate the light pollution and
nuisance caused. A large proportion of the area lit is unnecessary and disproportionate.

| have not written to JN as they have a well-documented habit of ignoring the rules and
submitting retrospective planning applications.

Page 33



I am happy for a site visit to my home if you deem it necessary. | have not submitted photo
imagery as | believe that the manipulation of exposure settings may give a false impression
of the levels of light complained about.

| am submitting a separate objection to the most recent retrospective planning application
submitted by JN.

Yours sincerely

Mr Jose De Freitas

Email 30/11/2020

Dear ERS and Planning,

| hope this email finds you all well.

Further to my email dated Thursday 19th November 2020 | wish to make a further
complaint regarding the ongoing light nuisance at commercial premises and land owned by
Jolly Nice Farm Shop and Kitchen, Frampton Mansell, Gloucestershire GL6 8HZ. | again,
make this complaint on the basis that obtrusive and artificial light is now defined as a
statutory nuisance in the Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005.

Overnight (28th to 29th November 2020) all obtuse external lighting left on, illuminating my
principal bedroom.

| also complain on behalf of the following residents_
_, who commented on our Community WhatsApp Group, as

follows, "Trying to sleep with a thick face mask on to block out the light - just doesn't
happen. So much brighter even than normal streetlights. And this will go on at least until

after Christmas"; | 5 < here Jo,

Lights at back and front left on all night shine into our house like daylight. Shame"; -

Page 34



I it doesn't impact on us the same as

you, but we can see the lights from our house and the pollution is awful".

The above is just a sample of the comments made by fellow residents. The owners of this
site have made multiple planning applications to expand the footprint, including a drive
thru' (20/02657/FUL and 20/02852/FUL) and as previously stated a retrospective application
(20/03785/FUL) for lighting to the front. None of the applications set out the lighting for the
rest of the site, which comprises of multiple obtuse external lights that are the cause of this
complaint. My neighbours and | have an expectation that we can enjoy dark skies during the
hours of darkness. | will leave you with comment previously made (18th November 2020) by
_ "The lighting is extremely intrusive, lighting our sitting room and shining
directly into our kitchen and illuminating our garden........ When | moved here there was
complete darkness at night. Now you struggle to see the stars due to the light pollution
from the cafe (Jolly Nice)".

Please acknowledge receipt of this complaint and | respectfully ask that you provide an
update on what action, if any, will be taken.

Dr R Howes
| would like to raise an objection to the above application on the following grounds :

1. Prevention of Public Nuisance. It is reasonable to expect an increase in both noise and
light pollution from the site which is within sight and sound of a quiet residential area, and
therefore will have a detrimental impact on residents lives, which has already suffered with
the existing licensing that you have granted. Since the site is a tent, there is no insulation
from either noise or light which is all outside.

2. Public Safety. It is reasonable to expect an increase in traffic at the site, and that the
cross roads outside the site at the A419 is already an accident hotspot. There is no street
lighting and therefore the increase in traffic can be expected to affect public safety. There is
no public transport any these extended hours, therefore the risk of drink driving can
reasonably be expected to increase.

Page 35



Sapperton Parish Council

Parish Clerk, For and on Behalf of Sapperton Parish Council

Dear Sir/Madam,

Sapperton Parish Council - Objection to Licence C/23/01019/PRMV - extending licencing hours
to 120pm, 7 days a week. Jolly Nice Farm Shop. Stroud Road, Frampton Mansell GL6 8HZ

Sapperton Parish Council wishes to lodge an objection to this licencing application opposing the
granting of the extension of licencing hours to 10pm, 7 days a week, on the grounds that this site
does not comply with policy tests related to noise and light in this location.

The map submitted by the applicant does not accurately depict the current layout of the site. The
Hive Bar, cited in the application, is not shown on the map. It is located in the southeastern corner
of the site, against the boundary with an adjacent agricultural property, where the map shows a
‘wildflower meadow’. There is no wildflower meadow shielding the Hive from the adjacent property
to the south. The Farm Shop on the map does not yet exist.

Noise:

NPPF Paragraph 185 and Cotswold District Plan Policy E4

Cotswold Local Plan Policy EN4 10.4.11 states ‘Some aspects of landscape quality, such as the
tranquillity of an area, are difficult to define but important to protect as a key element of the
character of the district. The PPG says that tranquil areas are those that are "relatively undisturbed
by noise from human caused sources that undermine the intrinsic character of the area. Such areas
are likely to be already valued for their tranquillity, including the ability to perceive and enjoy
natural soundscape, and are quite likely to be seen as special for other reasons including their
landscape’.

We object to an extension of licenced hours for the consumption of alcohol on these premises, as
the venue described as The Hive Bar is ‘al fresco’ meaning open air, and levels of noise are not
contained within a solid building. The Yurt, to be used as well, is canvass. The noise level is
markedly greater than would be the case within a solid structure as has already been experienced.
Noise travels in this rural location, carries further at night and is more intrusive than would be the
case if confined indoors. This application proposes greater noise levels between 8pm and 10pm, and
therefore does not meet the policy test within the NPPF Paragraph 18s.

It does not comply with Policy E4 in the CDC Local Plan in relation to the relative ‘tranquillity’ of this
location. The area surrounding the Jolly Nice is designated one step down from ‘Dark Skies’ and the
AONB is considered a ‘tranquil’ rural area.

Lighting:

This licence application states that ‘external lighting is directed away from residentsf/occupants in
the vicinity’. This is not the case. The festoon type lighting currently in use is unshielded and cannot
be directed away from residences nearby as claimed by the applicant.

Page 36



The site currently has NO planning permission for any of the festoon lighting currently in situ, which
was considered inappropriate when the applicant lodged a retrospective planning application for
external lighting in October 2020. Planning application 20/03785/FUL was subsequently withdrawn
when the Landscape Officer’s report recommended refusal, clearly stating that festoon lighting
across the site was significantly more than had been applied for, was an inappropriate type for the
location in the AONB, was not in accord with the AONB management Plan (now Cotswold National
Landscape), their position statement on light pollution, the Cotswold Conservation Board’s position
statement, the NPPF 2019 Paragraphs 170, 172 and 180, nor the Cotswold Local plan Policies EN2,
ENg4 and EN5. Both the Landscape Officer and the Parish Council, as consultees on the above
planning application, submitted photographs of the volume of inappropriate lighting which existed
across the site.

A second retrospective planning application was lodged in December 2022, 22/03850/FUL and was
subsequently refused. The decision notice states:

‘The application site is located within the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB),
wherein the Local Planning Authority is statutorily required to have regard to the purpose of conserving
and enhancing the natural beauty of the landscape. The proposed development is considered
inappropriate and would have a negative impact on the character and tranquillity of this valved
landscape. The dark skies of the AONB are one of its special qualities. Implementation of the proposal
would harm this special quality to the detriment of a nationally valued and protected landscape. It is
considered that the proposal would fail to conserve or enhance the natural beauty of the AONB and
would be contrary to Section 85 of the Countryside and Rights of Way (CROW) Act 2000, Cotswold
District Local Plan Policies EN2, EN4 and EN5 and NPPF paragraph 174 and 176.

There has been no other application for external lighting and the significant volume of unauthorised
lighting remains in situ despite residents and the Parish Council lodging ‘breaches’ of planning
permission in relation to it. The strings of the same inappropriate festoon lighting added to the
Hive Coffee Shop, the canopy above and the adjacent Yurt at the southeastern end of the site and
referred to in 22/03850/FUL are still in place as are the significant other strings of lights across the
site from North to South. Cotswold District Council has not acted on the reported breaches to date,
and unshielded, these open bulbs continue to create significant light spillage and nuisance to the

equine facility to the south of the site, residential properties and harm to nocturnal animals and
insects.

Cotswold National Landscape Policy CE5 and CPRE Mapping ‘Dark Skies’. The use of festoon
lighting in this position and context contravenes policy CE5 of the Cotswold National
Landscape/AONB Management Plan).

The CPRE Tranquillity mapping places this area one step down from Dark Skies and policy CE5 of
the Cotswold National Landscape/ AONB Management Plan states ‘Conserving dark skies means
ensuring the use of well-designed artificial light that is directed to where it is needed, when it is
needed and not into the sky or across the landscape’. The lighting currently in place across the site
is neither well-designed nor directable. Light from this site spills into neighbouring residential and
agricultural properties and can be seen from across the valley in Oakridge.

Cotswold District Local Plan Policy EN4 states “Lighting can also have major impacts on landscape
quality, particularly in areas of "Dark Skies" where there currently is little artificial light pollution.
There are no significant artificial light sources other than the Jolly Nice in this area.

Uncontrolled light spill resulting from festoon lighting has a detrimental effect on ecology as
confirmed by the Biodiversity Officer in the Case Officer’s Delegated Report on planning application
22/03850/FUL and as such the current volume of inappropriate lighting fails to accord with Local
Plan policy EN8 and Section 15 of the NPPF.

Page 37



The Landscape Officer's Report on planning application 20/03785/FUL and the Case Officer’s
Delegated Report and the Decision Notice on 22/03850/FUL are still applicable and we include them
herewith for your reference. NPPF 2019 cited in the Landscape Officer’s report has since been
updated and relevant paragraphs in the NPPF 2023 are 185 and 185C. References to the Cotswold
District Local Plan are still current.

The NPPF 2023 Paragraph 185 and 185c clearly states that planning decisions should take into
account the likely effects (including cumulative effects) of pollution on health, living conditions and
the natural environment and ‘limit the impact of light pollution from artificial light on local amenity,
intrinsically dark landscapes and nature conservation’. Allowing an unauthorised volume of
inappropriate lighting across the site does not comply with the above policy test.

The granting of extended hours will increase the amount of time this unauthorised lighting will be
illuminating the area. The Parish Council therefore objects to this application because allowing the
consumption of alcohol until 20pm, 7 days a week, in a venue devoid of mitigation for noise or
lighting, would have a detrimental impact on the character of the area which the District Council as
local planning authority is ‘statutorily’ required to protect, and adversely impact residences and
wildlife in the vicinity. The Parish Council has received complaints from residents regarding
significant light spillage and noise from recent late evening events held at the Jolly Nice.

The Parish Council therefore strongly suggests that no extension of licencing hours on this scale
should be approved until an application for an appropriate type and level of lighting for this site and
its location in the Cotswold National Landscape, has been received from this applicant and
approved by Cotswold District Council.

Page 38



	Agenda
	 Procedures for Licensing Hearings
	4 Application to Vary a Premises Licence
	Annex A - Applicaiton
	Annex B - Site Location and plan
	Annex C - Representations


